DARPA Future Combat Systems (FCS) Communications (FCS-C)

System Integration and Demonstration - PS01-04

Frequently Asked Questions

1 - Question: Is the technology demonstration limited to one airborne platform?

Response: No, but one surrogate UAV is a minimum. PS01-04 describes in detail the minimum number and type of platforms to be used in the demonstration. 

2 - Question: Does DARPA have any robotic program available for our coordination?

Response: The Unmanned Ground Combat Vehicles (UGCV) (PM - Scott Fish) in DARPA TTO and Tactical Mobile Robots (TMR) (PM - LTC John Blitch) in DARPA ATO may both be considered.

3 - Question: Is there a means for non-selected contractors to attend program meetings and reviews to maintain currency with DARPA Program progress?

Response: As with the February 01 PI Meeting, a portion of the next PI Meeting scheduled for May 01 will be open to potential bidders. After the May PI meeting it is anticipated that all future PI meetings will be closed due to competition concerns.

4 - Question: Is the funding ($1.5M in FY01 and $16.5M in FY02/03) per award or the total for all awards?

Response: The stated funding is the total for all awards. See the section on Program Funding of PS01-04.

5 - Question: Do you suggest that system integration proposals should include several or many of the FCS-C Technology performers?

Response: It is up to the system integrator to determine the technologies needed to achieve the program objectives described in PS01-04. This may include none, one, a few, or all of the BAA01-01 technology efforts. See para-2 of the Program Objectives of PS01-04. 

6 - Question: How do the system integrators relate and tie into the four FCS (TTO) teams? You described the requirements of open information required of the technology PI’s. What are the requirements for information exchange placed on the system integrators?

Response: Developing this interface is difficult because of the proprietary/competitive nature of the FCS effort, as well as the competition associated with PS01-04 and the subsequent down-select. It is the intent of the FCS-C program that the system integrators share, at a minimum, their approach to technology selection and integration with the FCS-C technology developers and the four FCS (TTO) teams. However, DARPA is sensitive to this issue and understands that competition may place practical limits on information exchange. 

7 - Question: Can someone who is working on a technology contract also bid/win a systems integration contract?

Response: Yes.

8 - Question: Why did you choose an Other Transaction (OT) as the contracting vehicle? Why OTs exclusively? Why not OT only as necessary or as benefits the governments?

Response: The program objectives were too specific for a BAA. An OT provided the flexibility, versus an RFP, that is desired and necessary for an aggressive program such as FCS-C.

9 - Question: Can companies still submit proposals for technology awards? 

Response: Yes - BAA01-01 remains open until 3 Oct 01 and DARPA always welcomes good ideas. However, the FY01 funds remaining for BAA01-01 are limited. 

10 - Question: Will DARPA define the electronic threat for the demonstration so that proper DSP software is installed in the demonstration equipment?

Response: The DARPA ATO Wolfpack program is defined as the notional threat for the FCS -C program; further definition of the electronic threat will be provided later in the FCS-C program. That being said, the FCS-C system goal is a design that adaptively reacts to a dynamic AJ/LPD threat, as notionally described in PS01-04. 

11 - Question: When you say technology developers should be team members, does that mean they should be proposal team members?

Response: Not necessarily. It is up to the System Integration and Demonstration offeror to construct their team in a way they believe provides best value to the government.

12 - Question: Do the same rules on information sharing and teaming apply to technology efforts related to FCS-C and mentioned at the 22 Feb 01 Industry Day, but not awarded as part of BAA01-01?

Response: The same rules on information sharing and teaming apply to all of the technology efforts presented at the 22 Feb 01 Industry Day; 

13 - Question: Must technology projects team exclusively with integrator primes if asked? Will they be dropped in one year if they are not part of the down-selected system integration and demonstration team?

Response: All FCS-C funded technology projects are contractually prohibited from teaming exclusively with system integrators. The PIs of the FCS-C funded technology projects are aware that their technology should be part of the down-selected system integration and demonstration team if they are to continue to receive DARPA funding as part of the FCS-C program.

14 - Question: What spectrum is allowed for the FCS-C program in the low band? Is the Joint Spectrum Center (JSC) going to make this determination? When?

Response: JSC is not currently studying any low-band spectrum for FCS-C beyond that currently envisioned for JTRS. However, DARPA ATO has already initiated aggressive low band spectrum studies for the SUO SAS program for application to dismounted warfighters. This may result in additional JTRS spectrum guidance as the FCS-C program evolves.

15 - Question: BAA01-01 Technology awards resulted in ~50% conventional contracts and ~50% other transactions. Is this a similar goal for the system integration and demonstration awards?

Response: No. DARPA plans to award up to three system integration and demonstration awards as other transactions (OTs). 

16 - Questions: Given that most of us are traditional defense contractors, will we be subject to the 1/3 cost sharing principle?

Response: Traditional defense contractors will be subject to the 1/3 cost sharing requirement for an OT. However, cost sharing is just one way of meeting the requirements for OT. DARPA encourages seeking out non-traditional partners to provide significant participation as an alternative to meeting the OT guidelines.

17 - Question: Who is the senior procurement executive that grants the 1/3 cost share waiver?

Response: At DARPA, the senior procurement executive is the director of DARPA Contracts Management Office (CMO). 

18 - Questions: Will free space laser communications systems be considered for use within the FCS communications operational framework? The impression that we received from the Industry Brief and discussions with RF communications company representatives is that laser communication systems are not considered for FCS Communications network applications. Is this a correct impression on our part?

Response: Free-space optical communications techniques are a potential solution to certain FCS communications challenges. However, the DARPA FCS-C program is not pursuing free-space optical communications because the DARPA STAB program is doing. Given that there is limited FY01 funding to pursue additional technology projects, a system integrator is free to propose a system design that includes free space optical (laser) communications if such technology helps meet or exceed the program objectives.

19 - Question: Has DARPA funded any efforts relating to either antenna pointing in a mobile environment? Perhaps DARPA has funded an effort in the mobile robotics arena to compensate for sudden changes in direction, velocity and altitude. 

Response: The area you describe is being done by the services as it relates to mobile SATCOM, and is fundamentally the same as stabilizing a laser designator, main gun turret, etc. 

20 - Question: The subject Program Solicitation printed in the CBD states subject White Papers are to be submitted by April 5, 2001, 12:00 p.m. ET. The Program Solicitation (Attachment. 2, page 20) posted on the DARPA web page states subject White Papers are to be submitted by April 12, 2001, 12:00 p.m. ET. Which is correct?

Response: Noon ET on 12 April 01 is correct.

21 - Question: Please explain why DARPA thinks that potential FCS Communication bidders should pay $1900 to attend a very expensive, DARPA-sponsored/approved/recommended training class on QualNet as advertised on the PS01-04 web page.

Response: In late March, DARPA held a QualNet training class for those performers already involved in the FCS-C program. There was interest on the part of more than a few potential FCS Communication bidders to attend this training class, but there was no room remaining at the late-March QualNet training session. DARPA and the performer of the QualNet training responded by offering another QualNet training session to those interested in attending at their own cost. Therefore, DARPA is only responding to interest among potential FCS Communication bidders, as opposed to levying a requirement on potential FCS Communication bidders. In fact, DARPA is not sponsoring the training class, only letting people know that it is available in response to demand from the community which has resulted in the new QualNet training class already being half full. You do not have to attend, and attendance is not necessarily recommended or approved by DARPA. It is up to the potential FCS Communication bidders to decide the benefit to attending. If you choose not to attend, you could still obtain a free trial version of the QualNet software from the performer.

22 - Question: When the winning system integrator down selects from the available technologists currently on contract with DARPA, and if a change to the SOW is required of one of the technologists selected, will DARPA fund the change to the technologists SOW to meet system requirements? 

Response: While the technology projects are funded to support some degree of system integration tasks, any costs resulting from changes or additions to a SOW of the existing technology performers that results in additional cost beyond the existing contract vehicle will be funded as part of the system integration effort and costed as part of the sub-system, system, and demonstration integration efforts.

23 - Question: What is the accessibility of FCS-C technologies from a technology selection perspective? What is the methodology by which the integration teams can interact with the technology contractors to get an understanding of their activities and progress? Is DARPA ensuring that they will provide the necessary executable programs to integrators? Since many contractors seem to base their current work on their previous work, how much information will the contractors be willing to share with the integrators? Will DARPA help in the information flow process? Can the integration team reach the contractors individually?

Response: As stated at the 22 Feb 01 Industry Day, the February and May PI Meetings each have a portion of the time that is open to potential system integrators which will allow access to and interaction with the technology projects to aid in the information flow and selection of technology. Viewgraphs from the 22 Feb 01 Industry Day can be obtained at http://www.darpa.mil/ato/programs/fcs_comm/industry_day.htm. The PIs of the FCS-C funded technology projects are aware that their technology should be part of the down-selected system integration and demonstration team if they are to continue to receive DARPA funding as part of the FCS-C program. PIs of the FCS-C funded technology projects are encouraged to share as much information as possible to facilitate such teaming, with the understanding that technology projects are not required to share any proprietary information. DARPA will not require technology projects to send executable program to integrators. It is DARPA’s intent that the government will serve the role of impartial evaluator of technology and report such evaluations to the funded system integrators at, potentially, the September 01 and January 02 PI meetings. Potential system integrators Integration teams may contact the technology performers individually for additional information.
24 - Question: The solicitation states: "The surrogate robotic vehicles must be actual robotic vehicles". This means that all must be unmanned and capable of remote control through the network being demonstrated. Is this correct?

Response: All surrogate robotic vehicles must be actual robotic vehicles in that they must be unmanned and capable of demonstrating control of the robot through the network. The term ‘surrogate’ is used in that the vehicles used in the FCS-C demonstration may or may not be the actual robotic vehicles eventually acquired by the FCS program. 
25 - Question: Many teams will respond to this solicitation. Membership will be diverse. Will it be acceptable for a company to prime one team and participate as a member of other team(s) or will this have to be de-conflicted prior to contract award?

Response: It is acceptable for a company to prime on one team and participate as a member of other teams. In fact, this is an expected occurrence resulting from the existing technology efforts. Any deconfliction necessary will be done prior to award of a system integration and demonstration agreement. 
26 - Question: Can the current four system contractors working on the TTO FCS program bid on the FCS Communications system integration and demonstration program? Is DARPA aware of any statutory or regulatory provisions, or other conditions, that would preclude or otherwise limit a contractor's ability, given a contractor’s existing role as a prime contractor on the Future Combat Systems (FCS) Program, to compete on an even basis with other companies for the FCS Communications Program. If yes, please explain.

Response: DARPA is not aware of any statutory or regulatory provisions, or other conditions, that would preclude or otherwise limit a contractor's ability to compete with other companies for the FCS-Communications program, given a contractor’s existing role as a prime contractor on the overall FCS program. The PS01-04 solicitation is full and open competition.

27 - Question: Will DARPA allow a contractor to apply the monetary savings realized from the utilization of Internal Research and Development (IR&D) rates (as opposed to contractor's normal pricing rates) in meeting OT cost sharing requirements? For example, in bidding a standard government contract, I would use rates=$X/hour. In bidding an OT, I can bid either IR&D or other abated rates=$X/2/hour. I would consider this a 50% investment by our company. Would you also consider this an investment of 50%?

Response: DoD Directive 5134.1 assigns responsibilities and prescribes procedures for implementation and use of OT for certain prototype projects via an "Other Transaction (OT) Guide For Prototype Projects" dated January, 2001 which can be obtained at 
http://www.darpa.mil/cmo/pages/845authorities.htm. In response to this question, it is strongly encouraged that offerors familiarize themselves with paragraph C2.16, Cost Sharing. Paragraph C2.16.3 states in part; Cost sharing should generally consist of labor, materials, equipment, and facilities costs (including allowable indirect costs). It is this and other guidance provided within the guide that will be used to determine the final response to your above question. 

28 - Question: On page 20, the text preceding the page limit table states that the Program Plan is unlimited page count. In the table, it is limited to 10 pages, including the schedule. Which is correct?

Response: The table is correct. The second sentence under page limitations should be as follows: "for the proposal, the sections entitled: Resources Required, Proposed Agreement, and Certifications have no page limitations."

29 - Question: In the proposal Organization guidelines, page 18, the Program Plan/Schedule are listed in the Management Approach as sections 5.4 and 5.5, preceding four other topics to be responded to. On the table on page 20, the Program Plan and Schedule are listed apart from the Management Approach. Is placement of the Program Plan and Schedule in the proposal up to the discretion of the offeror?

Response: Yes - the placement of the Program Plan and Schedule in the proposal is up to the discretion of the offeror.

30 - Question: Page 6 states "A down-select to a single contractor for the remaining options is expected to be made at or near the conclusion of the base award phase." However, the schedule on page 9 shows another down-select after sub-system Integration.

Response: Page 6 is correct.

31 - Question: When will the System Study Team (SST) Issues Report described in PS01-04 be made available on the DARPA web site? 

Response: Due to constraints on information that can be distributed via the web site, the SST Issues Report will not be made available on the DARPA web site. The SST Issues Report will be mailed out on CD upon an e-mail request by potential bidders to PS01-04@darpa.mil.

32 - Question: The purpose of this e-mail is to request clarifications in the "Proposal Guidance and Content of DARPA PS01-04" section of the subject solicitation. Specifically, of the nine sections under "Organization", Section 9 and Section 5 subsections 5.4 and 5.5 are not consistent with the information in the "Page Limitations" table of the "Administrative Instructions." The table contains two Section 5's. We believe the second Section 5, the "Program Plan and Schedule" should be Section 9 in the table with "none" as the page limitation. This would be consistent with the instructions for Section 9 on page 19 of the solicitation, the section of the proposal where we believe the actual Program Plan and Schedule should be located. The Management Approach Subsection 5.4 "Program Plan", and Subsection 5.5 "Integrated Schedule" will consist of a summary and discussion of the Program Plan and Schedule that are to be located in there entirety in section 9 of the proposal. Under this interpretation, the total page limitation for the proposal would be 55 pages reflecting the page limitations applicable to Section 1 through 5 only and no page limitations applied to Sections 6 through 9. Under the solicitation's current "Page Limitations" table, the total proposal page limitation would be 65 pages which we believe is not the intended

interpretation. Which is correct?

Response: In the response to Question 29, it was stated that the location of the Program Plan and Schedule is at the discretion of the proposer. However, regardless of where this information is contained within the proposal, the 10 page limit noted in the Page Limitation Table on page 20 of PS01-04 still applies.

33 - Question: Should subsection 5.3 Past Performance be a summary and discussion with actual resumes and past performance sheets that is included in Section 9 of the proposal or as an attachment to the proposal?

Response: As noted in the Page Limitation Table, the Management Approach page limitation does not apply to past performance or resumes. There is no page limitation for past performance or resumes.

34 - Question: PS01-04, the program solicitation for FCS Communications System Integration and Demonstration, Program Assumptions section, states "Sub-system integration (15 Feb 02 to 15 Nov 02): ... will be conducted over 10 months..." There is only a 9 month period between 15 Feb 02 and 15 Nov 02, inconsistent with the "10 months" statement. Please clarify.

Response: PS01-04 is in error and will be amended as follows:

Base Award - 6 months (15 August 01 to 15 February 02)

Sub-System Integration - 9.5 months (15 February 02 to 1 December 02)

System Integration - 4 months (1 December 02 to 1 April 03)

System Demonstration - 6 months (1 April 03 to 30 September 03)

35 - Question: Is DARPA funding for the options planned by Fiscal Year or by Phase (e.g. Sub-system, System Integration, Demonstration)? May the proposer submit a plan that changes the option values and/or time frames (e.g. months) as long as the total value of the options and period of performance remains the same as stated in the program solicitation?

Response: DARPA funding for the options is planned by Fiscal Year and Phase (e.g. Sub-system Integration, System Integration, Demonstration). Bidders should submit a proposal plan without varying from the period of performance and funds available guidelines given in PS01-04 and as amended by the response to Question #34.

36 - Question: Does DARPA have a definition regarding "significant extent" as it relates to non-traditional defense contractors?

Response: There is no definition for “significant extent” as in a “…non-traditional defense contractor participating to a significant extent in the prototype project” (from http://www.darpa.mil/cmo/pdfs/Sec803.pdf). Some factors may include: criticality of the technology being contributed; role of the non-traditional defense contactor(s) in the design process; and, value of the effort being proposed. Because the evaluation is subjective, it carries with it some risk to the proposing team that the Government will not recognize the value; therefore, offerors are requested to identify in their agreement addendum the applicable Section 803 condition with explanation, which qualifies them to receive the 845 award.

37 - Question: Under an OT 845 agreement, is it permissible to price the base award of a program using IR&D rates (e.g. cost match) and then price the option phase of the program using full up rates (e.g. G&A, COM)? If yes, are waivers involved, etc.?

Response: Under an OT for prototype agreement, pricing is largely at the discretion of the contractor, provided the pricing scheme conforms to the guidance provided in "Other Transaction (OT) Guide For Prototype Projects" dated January, 2001, which can be obtained at http://www.darpa.mil/cmo/pages/845authorities.htm.
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